
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Human Resources Committee 

on Tuesday, 10 September 2019, at 3.00 p.m. 

in the District Council Chamber 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Pat Bell 

Roger Bingham 

Philip Dixon 

Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 

Dave Khan 

Brian Rendell 

Matt Severn 

Janet Willis (Vice-Chairman) 

Mark Wilson 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Friday, 30 August 2019 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Una Bell 

 

Telephone: 01539 793248 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 26 March 2019 (copy attached). 

 

3  MINUTES OF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE  9 - 10 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Appeals Sub-Committee held on 6 
June 2019 (copy attached) and for the Chairman of the appropriate Sub-
Committees to sign, as a correct record. 

 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

5  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

6  CONSTITUTION OF THE JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL   

 To consider endorsement of the changes to the Constitution of the Joint 
Consultative Panel (JCP). 
 
The JCP Constitution has been updated to reflect the change in portfolio title to 
Customer and Commercial Services and People and, following Customer 
Connect Phase One, the change to the Management Representative job title to 
Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources.   
 
At its meeting on 20 August 2019, the Joint Consultative Panel was requested to 
approve the change to the Constitution to provide for the Vice Chairman of the 
Human Resources Committee to be the second Member Representative on the 
Panel and for the Human Resources Committee to be consulted and requested 
to accept the proposed change. 

 



7  SICKNESS ABSENCE REPORT 2018/19  11 - 22 

 To consider the Annual Report on Employee Sickness Absence for the period 1 
April 2018 to 31 March 2019. 
 

 

8  MENTAL WELLBEING AT WORK POLICY  23 - 84 

 To consider the Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy.  

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)  

 

9  HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE  
 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

 

85 - 90 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Committee held on 17 April 2019. 

 

10  JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL  
 
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 

contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour 
relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and 
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  
 

91 - 94 

 To receive the notes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 12 
March 2019. 

 

11  REQUEST UNDER THE EXCEPTIONAL SPECIAL LEAVE, SECONDMENT 
AND LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES  
 
- Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information)  
- Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter 
arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or 
office holders under the authority.  

- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings.  
 

95 - 106 

 To consider a request for paid leave under the SLDC Exceptional Special 
Leave, Secondment and Learning and Development Policies. 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



19 
26.03.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Human Resources Committee held in the 
Bindloss Room - Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 26 March 2019, at 3.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 
  
 

Roger Bingham 
 

Andrew Butcher 
 

Graham Vincent 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Philip Dixon (Vice-Chairman), 
Peter Thornton and Mark Wilson. 
 
 

Officers 
 

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Kerry Johnson-Metcalfe Human Resources Lead Specialist 

Charles Officer Senior Human Resources Advisor 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

 

HR/45 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting held on 12 February 2019. 
 

HR/46 MINUTES OF HUMAN RESOURCES SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Human Resources Sub-Committee 
held on 22 and 24 January 2019 be received and the Chairman of the appropriate Sub-
Committee be authorised to sign as correct record.  
 

HR/47 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

HR/48 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

HR/49 WORKING ARRANGEMENTS AND FLEXI POLICY  
 
The Human Resources Manager presented the new Working Arrangements and Flexi 
Time Policy. She informed Members that following consultation with the Trade Unions, the 
Policy had been presented to the Joint Consultative Panel at its meeting on 12 March 
2019 and it had received full support and been recommended to the Human Resources 
Committee for approval.  

Page 5

Item No.2



20 
26.03.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

 
The Human Resources Manager explained that the 'people work-stream' of Phase 1 of 
the Customer Connect Programme was nearing completion and the Working 
Arrangements and Flexi Policy had been reviewed to enable new ways of working more 
flexibly and to be in line with customers’ requirements. In order to achieve this, flexibility 
would be increased around working arrangements for the vast majority of the Council.  
This meant that existing core working hours would be removed.  Access to services 
between the hours of 8.45 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. would remain, however, not all employees 
would work within the rigidity of these times.  Employees would be able to start earlier or 
later than 8.45 a.m. and finish earlier or later than 5.00 p.m.  However, services would 
have to be covered by employees during the Council’s opening hours. The Human 
Resources Manager informed Members that, due to their prescribed hours, Street Scene 
employees at the depots were unable to use the Flexi Time Scheme.  
 
The Human Resources Manager highlighted that the report stated that if approved the 
Policy would be implemented with effect from 1 April 2019. However, it had been 
proposed to delay implementation to take effect from 1 October 2019 which would allow 
the Customer Connect Phase 1 transition to take place and the opportunity to train those 
recruited to the new Team Leader posts.  
 
The Human Resources Manager went on to explain that flexibility in the workplace would 
allow the Council and its employees to make arrangements for working hours that suited 
the Council, its customers and employees.  This would support the service provision and 
also promote and maintain a healthy work/life balance for the Council’s employees. This 
type of flexibility had countless benefits which, in turn, would lead to the improvement of 
productivity and efficiencies. It could also lead to increased employee morale, 
engagement and commitment, to the enhancement of employment reputation and, 
ultimately, to the Council becoming an employer of choice in the area.  In addition it could 
lead to staff retention and reduced turnover. The flexible working arrangements supported 
the agile model and provided a clear leadership vision around the creation of an 
environment that was built on trust. However, such flexible working arrangements could 
be open to potential abuse and it was highlighted that the aim was to manage any breach 
of trust and confidence on a case by case basis.  
 
The Human Resources Manager clarified that the Policy also included the existing 
arrangements surrounding the accrual of flexi and that it did not replace an employees’ 
statutory right to apply for flexible working.   
 
Discussion took place in respect of home working and lone working and the impact on the 
social wellbeing of staff and the Human Resources Manager and the Chief Executive 
responded to questions raised by Members. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Working Arrangements and Flexi Policy at Appendix 1 to the 
report be approved for implementation with effect from 1 October 2019. 
 

HR/50 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated. 

Page 6



21 
26.03.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

 

HR/51 HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE 
 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) and the Chief Executive 
responded to questions raised by Members. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Committee held on 15 January 2019 be received. 
 

HR/52 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 3.33 p.m. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



1 
06.06.2019 Appeals Sub-Committee 
 

APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Appeals Sub-Committee held in the 
Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Thursday, 6 June 2019, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors  
  

Roger Bingham 
 

Dave Khan 
 

Brian Rendell 
 

Officers 
 

Kerry Johnson-Metcalfe Human Resources Lead Specialist 

Charles Officer Senior Human Resources Advisor 

 

APP/1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Dave Khan be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

APP/2 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
Councillor Rachael Hogg having, prior to the commencement of the meeting, indicated 
that she was acquainted with the Appellant’s representative, attention was drawn to the 
fact that Councillor Roger Bingham, as substitute Member, had taken her place on the 
Sub-Committee. 
 

APP/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised under this item. 
 

APP/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

APP/5 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public, with the exception of the appellant and their representative, be excluded from 
the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by 
virtue of the paragraph indicated. 
 

APP/6 APPEAL - 2019/20 - 002 
 
- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.  
 
Following introductions, the Chairman advised all present of the correct procedure to be 
followed during the appeal hearing. 
 
The appellant was in attendance and was represented and assisted in presenting their 
case by a representative. 

Page 9

Item No.3



2 
06.06.2019 Appeals Sub-Committee 
 
 
The case for the Council was presented by the Operational Lead Delivery and 
Commercial Services. 
 
Following presentation of written and oral statements, questions were put to the appellant 
and their representative and to the Council representative.  The appellant and their 
representative and the Council’s representative were also provided an opportunity to raise 
questions.  The cases for the appellant and the Council were then summed up. 
 
Note – the Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant, in making its decision, pursuant to schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-  
 
Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
The Sub-Committee then withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward. 
 
After reconvening, the Chairman said that the Panel had listened very carefully to the 
facts that had been presented, and had reached a unanimous decision.  The Chairman 
stated that a letter confirming the Panel's decision would be sent to the appellant within 
five working days. 
 
The Chairman read out the decision of the Panel as contained in the following resolution. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1)  the original decision by management be upheld; and 
 
(2)  a letter confirming the Sub-Committee’s decision be sent to the appellant within 
five working days of the Appeal. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.30 p.m. 

Page 10



1 
 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

10 September 2019 

Annual Report on Employee Sickness Absence 

 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Eric Morrell – Customer and Commercial Services 
and People Portfolio Holder 

Report from: David Sykes - Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Report Author: Charles Officer - Senior HR Advisor 

Wards:  N/A 

Forward Plan: N/A 

 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report provides details of employee sickness absence in the Council during 
the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 and proposes a target for 2019/20. 
The report has been shared with the Joint Consultative Panel who have 
endorsed it. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that  

(1) The Human Resources Committee note the report and actions to be 
taken moving forward. 

(2) The target for sickness absence for 2019/20 of 7.50 days to be 
approved. 

 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Sickness Absence is measured and reported as “Days lost through sickness 
per Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) employee”, using the calculation conventions of 
the former National Performance Indicator BV12. This is a standard format, 
which allows realistic comparison with other organisations. It includes sickness 
absence attributable to employees who have left employment during the period 
under review, and fixed term employees. It does not include sickness absence 
attributable to casual staff or Members.  

Page 11

Item No.7



2 
 

  

 

  

Sickness Absence Targets 

3.2     During the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, the Council had an average 
full time equivalent (FTE) of 422.4. The Council lost 3852.4 working days 
through sickness absence, compared to 3049.4 in the previous year (an 
increase of 20.8%, 803 days). This is equivalent to 8.92 days per FTE 
employee per annum. This represents an increase of 1.61 days per FTE 
employee compared to last year (7.31) and an increase of 2.42 days over the 
target of 6.5 days per FTE employee agreed by the Human Resource 
Committee.  

3.3 Of the total number of days lost, 2461.8 days were lost through long-term 
absence. (Long term absence is defined as any absence lasting for a period of 
four working weeks or more). This is equivalent to 63.9% of all sickness 
absence for the period under review. In the corresponding period in the 
previous year 1683.7 days were lost which was equivalent to 55.2% of all 
sickness absence.  

In 2018/19 there were 41 incidences of long term absence which were 
supported by the HR team, which is the same as last year.  

The average duration of a long-term absence was 62.38 days, compared to 
41.1 days in the previous year. 

 

3.4 For each directorate area the Long Term Sickness figures for 2018/19 are as 
follows: 

Directorate Area Total Days of 
Long Term 
Absence lost 

Total number of 
Staff on long 
term sickness 
absence 

Average number 
of days lost per 
employee 

Neighbourhood 
Services 

1272.72 24 69.21 

Strategic 
Development 

577.5 7 38.21 

Performance and 
Information  

282 3 82 

Resources 329.6 7 54.69 

 

3.5  Of the total number of days lost, 1390.6 days were lost through short-term 
absence. (Short term absence is defined as any absence lasting less than a 
period of four working weeks). This is equivalent to 36.1% of all sickness 
absence for the period under review. In the corresponding period in the 
previous year 1365.8 days were lost which was equivalent to 44.8% of all 

Page 12



3 
 

sickness absence. In 2018/19 there were 404 incidences of short term absence. 
The average duration of a short-term absence was 2.94 days. 

 

3.6 For each directorate area the Short Term Sickness figures for 2018/19 are as 
follows: 

Directorate Area Total Days of 
Short Term 
Absence lost 

Total number of 
Staff on short 
term sickness 
absence 

Average number 
of days lost per 
employee 

Neighbourhood 
Services 

829.04 232 3.67 

Strategic 
Development 

194.17 53 3.01 

Performance and 
Information  

145.34 45 3.19 

Resources 210 72 2.92 

Corporate 
Management 

12 2 1.71 

 

Pro-active Measurement and Actions 

3.7    The Human Resources Service regularly measures days lost through sickness 
absence and reports are sent to Senior Management Team on a monthly basis. 
In addition, managers are supported in monitoring and reducing levels of 
absence in their service area. This report provides an annual overview, outlines 
progress achieved, and provides information about on-going work being 
undertaken to enable the Council to manage sickness absence effectively. 

3.8 The increased level of pro-active support available to employees, for example, 
free confidential counselling, the introduction of an Employee Assistance 
Programme, occupational health provision, and the Pay Care Health cash plan 
will contribute to improving figures.  

 Categories for Absence 

3.9      The reason for absence category is taken from the employee directly or fit note 
and consistently entered onto the HR system,  iTrent.    

3.10 The top reasons for absence through sickness, by percentage of days lost, are 
musculo-skeletal (1277 days, 33%, 59 cases),  (e.g. joints, ligaments, muscles 
and structures to support limbs) followed by stress, depression, anxiety and 
fatigue (563 days, 14.62%).  An analysis of the days actually lost, by reason for 
absence, is attached as Appendices 1 and 2.  

3.11 Since the previous reporting year the Council has seen the biggest increase in 
Cardiovascular, heart, blood pressure, circulation (241%, 97 days in 2017/18 
compared to 330 days in 2018/19) and infection, virus, allergy (170%, 57 days 
in 2017/18 compared to 154 days in 2018/19) and non-work related stress, 

Page 13



4 
 

depression, anxiety, fatigue (90%, 296 days in 2017/18 compared to 563.14 
days in 2018/19). 

3.12 The biggest reduction since the previous reporting year has been in back and 
neck problems (66.55% decrease, 315 days in 2017/18 compared to 105 days 
in 2018/19), gynaecological problems (64.32% decrease, 229 days in 2017/18 
compared to 81 days in 2018/19) and work related stress (55.64% decrease, 
195 days in 2017/18 compared to 86.5 days in 2018/19). 

3.14 Absence due to non-work related stress/depression has increased since last 
year.  A total of 296 days was reported last year, however this increased to 563 
days in 2018/19 (90% increase, 267 days). 

3.15 Absence due to work related stress has decreased since last year. A total of 
195 days was reported for last year compared to 86 days for this year (a 
reduction of 55.64%, 109 days). 

The Council is continuing to manage stress related absences through the use 
of the stress assessment process, which includes: 

 Wellbeing days that include suggestions on how to cope with stress, 
and general overall wellbeing. 

 A counselling and Occupational Health service which staff can access.  

 The introduction of an Employee Assistance Programme. 

 Training for managers on stress and wellbeing issues which forms part 
of the Council’s Annual Corporate Training Plan.  

 The identification of Stress incidences on the first day of absence and 
appropriate support and prompt measures taken to deal with any issues 
leading to or causing stress absence. 
 

 Pro-Active Management of Sickness Absence 

3.16 It is proposed to continue this pro-active management in sickness absence by 
continuing to set the challenging target for 2019/20 of 7.50 days per employee 
per annum.  

3.17    A range of pro-active actions were introduced in the last financial year to help 
meet the proposed target and reduce absence further:-  

• Revision of all sickness absence reason categories to align with national 
published data to assist benchmarking and more detailed absence for 
manager’s reviews. In addition to this, more specific reasons have been 
introduced to capture work and non-work related musculoskeletal sickness 
absence. This will take effect in 2019/20. Initial insight into musculoskeletal 
sickness from 2017/18 shows a vast majority of non-work related absences. 

• Provision of seminars on work life balance, priority setting techniques, team 
working, well-being events and motivational sessions.  

• Two categories of stress have now been established to monitor workplace 
and personal stress to support employees and take actions that are 
appropriate and timely. 

Further Actions and Activities 

3.18  The following pro-active actions will continue, where appropriate, to assist 
managers in the management of sickness absence.       

Page 14



5 
 

• The introduction of a Mental Wellbeing at Work policy to raise awareness of 
mental health and to support managers and employees with proactive 
measures in supporting each other with mental health conditions. 

• The introduction of a Smart Working policy (working title) that allows all staff 
to be flexible in their work life balance. 

• Providing training to equip managers with the necessary knowledge and 
skills to manage sickness absence. The use of policies and procedures such 
as “Attendance Management”, “Mental Health at Work” and “Smart 
Working”. 

• Advising managers each time employees reach a sickness absence trigger 
point.  

• The return to work interview is monitored by Human Resources and 
managers are advised where they are overdue.  

• Absence reviews are conducted in line with the Attendance Management 
Policy with full support from Human Resources.  

• The Council utilises professional Occupational Health advice in managing 
levels of absence, particularly long-term absence.  

• A free confidential Counselling Service is available for all employees.  
• A free confidential Employee Assistance Programme is available for all 

employees. 
• The Council offers the opportunity for employees to join the Pay Care Health 

Cash Plan which allows for regular dental, optical check-ups, etc, which 
should contribute to reduced levels of sickness absence.  
 

4.0       RESEARCH AND CONSULTATION 

4.1 All data used in this report relating to South Lakeland District Council has 
originated from the Council’s iTrent Human Resources computerised system.  

4.2     External benchmarking has also taken place to assess our performance against 
other relevant external organisations.  The Council’s absence figure for 2018/19 
of 8.92 days which is slightly higher than that recorded for the UK Public Sector 
in a xpertHR Survey which was recorded at 8.4 days.  Appendix 3 of the report, 
provides the sickness absence figures between 2004/05 and 2018/19.  

4.3 Absence comparison data has been produced by XpertHR and C.I.P.D 
nationally and has been provide below for comparison.  

National 
Comparative Data 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013  

XpertHR National 
report on Absence-  
Public Sector      

8.4 
days 

9.7days 9.8 
days 

9.08 
days 

8.2 
days 

9.1 
days 

XpertHR National 
report on Absence-  
Private Sector     

4.4 
days  

5.6 
days 

6.5 
days 

7.8 
days 

6.6 
days 

8.8 
days 

SLDC 8.92 
days 

7.31 
days 

8.99 
days 

8.54 
days 

7.4 
days 

6.5 
days  

 

Page 15



6 
 

4.3      At the time of writing this report the sickness data for 2018/19 from North West 
Employers was unavailable.  A verbal update will be provided if the information 
is available before the committee meets. 

 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 Not applicable – the report is provided for information. 

 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The recognition of a highly skilled workforce is embedded into the council plan 
which shows how essential a motivated workforce is to providing excellent 
customer services. As part of our Customer Connect transition a reduction in 
employee absence will allow better continuity of services with a healthier 
workforce being a more productive workforce. 

 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources  

7.1.1 From the iTrent Human Resources computerised system it is calculated that 
the cost of sickness absence for the financial year was £313,900. This figure 
does not include on costs or the cost of cover, overtime or flexi-time being 
worked to cover absences. 

 
 
7.1.2  The cost of absence in 2017/18 was £221,300. The increase in days from last 

year (803) has seen an increased cost of £92,600 calculated on the same salary 
basis as above.  

 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 The Council’s Attendance Management Policy provides details of how 
employees will be managed during sickness absence. The access to staff of 
their absence records over the year will also help them become more aware of 
their absence from work and encourage greater Health and Wellbeing 
awareness. 

 

7.3 Legal 

There are no legal implications to this report. 

 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out.  It has no impact 
on the climate change. 

7.4.2 This report does not have any registered significant environmental effects. 

 

Page 16



7 
 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 There are no trends in the sickness absence analysis figures indicating any 
equality or diversity issues. 

 

7.6 Risk 

 Not applicable – the report is provided for information purposes. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Kerry Johnson-Metcalfe, Lead HR Specialist, 01539 793299 
k.johnson-metcalfe@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

Charles Officer, Senior Human Resources Advisor, 01539 793188 
charles.officer@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Reason for absence by percentage of days lost – 1 April 2018 to 
31 March 2019 

2 Reason for sickness absence by percentage and number of 
incidents - 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

3 SLDC days lost through sickness absence per full-time 
equivalent (FTE) employee per annum -  2004/05 to 2018/19 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 5/8/19 

Section 151 Officer 5/8/19 

Monitoring Officer 5/8/19 

CMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 5/8/19 

Human Resources Lead 
Specialist 

5/8/19 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 29/8/19 

Page 17

mailto:charles.officer@southlakeland.gov.uk


8 
 

Circulated to Date sent 

Portfolio Holder 29/8/19 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

Page 18



9 
 

 

Back, neck problems
3%

Cardiovascular, heart, blood 
pressure, circulation

9%

Cold, flu, chest, respiratory 
problems

10%

Disease, cancer/treatment
4%

Eye, ear, nose, throat,mouth 
inc. dental

5%

Gastro-Intestinal, stomach, 
liver, kidney, digestive 

problems
3%

Gynaecological related 
problems

2%
Headache, migraine, all 
neurological problems

1%

Industrial Injury
0%

Infection, virus, allergy
4%

Musculoskeletal
33%

Other
6%

Sickness, stomach upset, 
diarrhoea

3%

Sp - Family Bereavement
0%

Sp - Medical Screening
0%

Stress, depression, anxiety, 
fatigue

15%

Stress-work related
2%

% OF DAYS LOST

Appendix 1 

 

P
age 19



10 
 

Appendix 2 

 
Reason for Sickness Absence by Days Lost and Percentage 
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 
 

Reason  for Absence Days Lost % of Days Lost 

Back, neck problems 105.38 2.74 

Cardiovascular, heart, blood pressure, circulation 330.9 8.59 

Cold, flu, chest, respiratory problems 387.38 10.06 

Disease, cancer/treatment 154.38 4.01 

Eye, ear, nose, throat,mouth inc. dental 176.29 4.58 

Gastro-Intestinal, stomach, liver, kidney, digestive 
problems 107.73 2.80 

Gynaecological related problems 81.7 2.12 

Headache, migraine, all neurological problems 30.28 0.79 

Industrial Injury 11 0.29 

Infection, virus, allergy 154.31 4.01 

Musculoskeletal 1277.28 33.16 

Other 237.32 6.16 

Sickness, stomach upset, diarrhoea 130.44 3.39 

Sp - Family Bereavement 11 0.29 

Sp - Medical Screening 7.04 0.18 

Stress, depression, anxiety, fatigue 563.14 14.62 

Stress-work related 86.5 2.25 

Total 3852.07 100 

  

P
age 20



11 
 

  

 

 

9.46

8.53 8.32 8.44

10.6

9.14

10.28

8.95

7.94

6.5

7.43

8.54
8.99

7.31

8.92

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

SLDC days lost per FTE employee 2004/05 - 2018/19

Appendix 3 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 22



South Lakeland District Council 

Human Resources Committee 

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 

Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy 

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Eric Morrell 

Report from:  David Sykes, Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Report Author: Dawn Bradley, Human Resources Advisor 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 That the Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy is approved for implementation.  The impact 
of this will be to raise awareness of mental health, remove the stigma associated with 
mental health and to improve the wellbeing of staff by building resilience. 

1.2 It is anticipated that the benefits of implementing this policy will be reduced levels of 
sickness absence, reduction in staff turnover and an increase in productivity. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Human Resources Committee:- 

 (1) approves the Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy and Procedure attached as 
Appendix 1 for implementation. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council is committed to creating a safe and healthy working environment that 
promotes the health and wellbeing of its employees.  It is committed to working with 
employees, employee representatives and trade unions to develop a culture and 
environment where employees are healthy, motivated and focussed.  This will have a 
positive impact on providing the best possible services for our residents. 

 
3.2   The aim of this policy is to prevent and address mental health issues among our 

employees, creating a supportive environment and a healthy and happy workplace 
where everyone is treated fairly. 
 

3.3.   The Health and Safety Executive reports that one in four people in the UK will have a 
mental health problem at some time.  At South Lakeland District Council 649.64 days 
were lost in the reporting period 2018/19 due to mental health related conditions, 
including work related stress, representing 16.87% of days lost.  It is the second main 
cause of days lost due to sickness.  
 

3.4   The Council already provides a comprehensive range of support for employees who 
have a period of ill health relating to mental health, such as return to work meetings, 
an employee assistance programme, counselling, flexible working options and 

Page 23

Item No.8



occupational health.  The policy brings all of the support together in a toolkit and also 
provides further support options such as a wellness action plan and a talking toolkit. 
 

3.5   If the policy is approved it will have an implementation date of 1 October 2019, and 
will be supported by an awareness raising campaign, comprising of workshops for all 
employees, a poster campaign and publicity on the staff health and wellbeing pages.  
This will be an ongoing campaign, including references to national campaigns such as 
Time To Talk Day, Mental Health Awareness Week, etc. 
 

3.6   In the future consideration will be given to signing up to nationally recognised 
accreditations such as Mindful Employer and signing the Time to Change Pledge. 
 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Health Advocates and Change Champions, who are internal staff groups, have been 
consulted and have provided their input into the development of this policy. 

4.2 The Joint Consultative Committee has also been consulted and have endorsed the 
policy. 

 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The alternative is to not have a policy and risk not building resilience in the 
organisation, having a negative impact on sickness absence levels, and therefore staff 
morale and productivity. 

 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 A clear policy ensures that the council continues to work towards the Council Plan by 
ensuring excellence and openness. 

 

7.0 Implications 

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1.1 There is no financial cost in implementing this policy and the benefits to implementing 
the policy should be an overall reduction in sickness absence and the overall cost to 
the Council. 

7.2  Human Resources 

7.2.1 The aim of the implementation of the policy is to reduce sickness absences levels and 
increase productivity through a healthy, motivated and focussed workforce. 

7.3  Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications involved in the implementation of this policy. 

7.4  Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? Yes (attached at Appendix 2)  

7.4.2 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: the policy will have 
a positive impact on health and wellbeing. 

7.5  Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 3) 

Page 24



7.5.2 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: the policy has a positive impact on the 
Council’s equality and diversity principals and commitments. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The new Mental Wellbeing at 
Work Policy is not approved. 

Mental wellbeing is not 
promoted and the 
management of mental ill 
health is not consistent. 

Implementation of the 
policy. 

Contact Officers 

Kerry Johnson-Metcalfe, Lead HR Specialist, 01539 793299 
kerry.johnson-metcalfe@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

Dawn Bradley, HR Advisor, 01539 793174 

dawn.bradley@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy 

2 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact Assessment 

3 Equality Impact Analysis 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

n/a n/a 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 29/8/19 

Section 151 Officer 29/8/19 

Monitoring Officer 20/8/19 

CMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 20/8/19 

Human Resources Lead Specialist 20/8/19 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 25

mailto:dawn.bradley@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy and Procedure 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
The Council is committed to creating a safe and healthy working environment that promotes 
the health and wellbeing of its employees.  It is committed to working with employees, 
employee representatives and trade unions to develop a culture and environment where 
employees are healthy, motivated and focussed.  This will have a positive impact on providing 
the best possible services for our residents. 
 
The aim of this policy is to prevent and address mental health issues among our employees, 
creating a supportive environment and a healthy and happy workplace where everyone is 
treated fairly. 
 
2.0 Scope 
 
This policy applies to all employees of South Lakeland District Council. 
 
3.0 Principles 
 
Wellbeing at work embodies a number of principles: 
 

 Pleasant working environments will be created collaboratively with the involvement of 
managers, employees and trade unions 

 The wellbeing of our employees is important and issues will be treated seriously, 
supportively and proactively  

 Mental ill health is detrimental to a person, impacting on happiness, productivity and 
collaboration, but with the right support they can thrive at work and make a valuable 
contribution 

 
Aims of the policy: 
 

 Improve mental health awareness and remove the stigma 

 Support employees who are experiencing mental ill health 

 Create a safe and healthy working environment where employees feel able to talk 
openly about their mental health and not fear discrimination, bullying or harassment 

 Improve physical and emotional wellbeing  

 Build resilience 

 Encourage and support employees to develop and maintain a healthy lifestyle 

 Tackle the causes of work related mental ill health 
 

 
4.0 Links to the law 
 
Employers have a legal responsibility to protect both the physical and mental health of their 
employees.  The main pieces of legislation are the Equality Act 2010, which places a 
requirement on employers to consider making reasonable adjustments that will allow 
employees with a mental health condition that is covered by the definition of a disability in the 
Act to carry out their work, and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, which places a duty 
on employers to create a safe working environment, by assessing risks and taking steps to 
effectively manage and control them. 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 27



The Equality Act states that “a person is disabled if they have ‘a physical or mental impairment’ 
which has ‘a substantial and long-term adverse effect’ on their ‘ability to carry out normal day-
to-day activities’.” 
 
Associated policies: 

 Attendance Management 

 Flexible Working/Flexible Retirement 

 Working Arrangements and Flexi Time Policy 

 Special leave 

 Maternity Leave/Paternity Leave/Maternity Support Leave/Parental Leave/Shared 

Parental Leave 

 Dignity at Work 

 Grievance 

5.0 What we mean by mental health 
 
Mental health includes our emotional, psychological, and social well-being. It affects how we 
think, feel, and act. It also helps determine how we handle stress, relate to others, and make 
choices.  Anyone can suffer from a period of mental ill health, which covers a range of feelings 
and conditions, from ‘feeling down’ to anxiety or depression, to conditions such as bipolar 
disorder or schizophrenia. 
 
Mental ill health can be caused by a number of factors including bereavement or a physical 
illness; but work, while generally being a positive influence on mental health, can also have a 
negative impact. 
 
Please refer to Section 4.0 above for the definition provided by the Equality Act 2010 of a 
disability. 
 
Research has found that stress is the most common cause of long term absence in public 
sector organisations, with mental ill health in general being reported as a top cause of absence 
(CIPD May 2018).  ACAS (2019) reports that the estimated cost of mental ill health to UK 
employers each year is between £33 billion and £42 billion. 
 
 
6.0 Benefits to supporting mental health in the workplace 
 
Having a healthy workforce with good mental health results in teams and employees who are 
more likely to perform well, have good attendance levels and are engaged in their work.  The 
benefits are:  
 

 A healthier, happier workforce  

 Motivated employees with increased morale  

 Collaborative team working 

 Employee retention and reduced employee turnover  

 Reduced sickness absence  

 Reduced presenteeism (where employees attend work when they are unwell) 

 Good employee/management relations  

 Increased productivity 
 

Page 28



This policy strongly links to a number of support measures that are already in place to actively 
support and promote the health and wellbeing of our employees: 
 

 Return to work meetings  

 Trigger mechanisms to review attendance 

 Mental health training 

 Leave for a range of personal circumstances 

 Flexible working 

 Family friendly provisions 

 Employee Assistance Programme – providing counselling and a wide range of other 

services 

 Occupational Health 

 Risk assessments 

 HR support  

 
7.0 Positive mental health at work 
 
The diagram below shows how the council will seek to achieve positive mental health in the 
workplace: 
 

 
(Acas framework for positive mental health at work) 

We will provide training, guidance and support to managers and teams so they have the 
necessary skills, knowledge and ability to support employees to improve their mental health 
and wellbeing. We will also ensure that through a variety of means we provide information, 
support and training to our employees to increase their awareness of the importance of caring 
for their own mental health and wellbeing and that of others. 
 
7.1 How we will embed positive mental health attitudes 
 

 Encourage a culture where mental health is not stigmatised and employees feel able 
to talk about mental health concerns 

Managers        
are informed and 

open to 
conversations 
with their staff

Employers are 
visibly 

committed to 
positive mental 

health

Individuals are 
self-aware and 

ask for help 
when needed

Page 29



 Training sessions for employees and line managers 

 Promotion of this policy 

 By listening to feedback from employees through engagement surveys and exit 
interviews 

 Analysis of sickness absence data to devise targeted support strategies 

 Be aware of best practice 
 
Staff who are able to talk openly about their mental health without fear of judgement or 
discrimination are more likely to:  
 

 Disclose existing mental health conditions, making it easier to identify signs of 
mental distress should they experience mental ill health again in the future  

 Be honest about their own mental health and feel able to seek help at an early stage 
if their mental health begins to deteriorate  

 Stop trying to hide their mental ill health, which can cause additional stress and 
cause further problems  

 Support colleagues experiencing mental ill health  

 
8.0 Management of mental wellbeing in the workplace 
 
Managers are encouraged to proactively identify any mental health issues in their team and 
to reach out to those who they are concerned about, with a view to identifying solutions in a 
collaborative and respectful way.  Employees are not obliged to share information with their 
line managers and if an employee feels uncomfortable or prefers not to discuss their mental 
health they will be signposted to other forms of support as described in this policy. 

8.1 Practical steps to managing mental ill health in the workplace 

Where individuals are experiencing mental ill health in the workplace they are encouraged to 
discuss their concerns with their line manager.  This policy makes a commitment to dealing 
with mental health issues in the same way as physical ill health, by using open dialogue and 
a supportive approach to help employees continue with their work.  It is acknowledged that 
some employees may not wish to discuss their health with their line manager and should this 
be the case they are encouraged to approach the Human Resources team for support.   

Common signs that an employee may be experiencing mental ill health include: 

 Changes in behaviour or mood or how they interact with colleagues 

 Changes in work output, motivation levels and focus 

 Struggling to make decisions, get organised and find solutions to problems 

 Appearing tired, anxious or withdrawn and losing interest in activities and tasks they 
previously enjoyed 

 Changes in eating habits and appetite 

 Increased smoking and drinking 

If line managers are concerned, or concerns have been raised by a colleague, that all or some 
of the above symptoms are being displayed they will have a discussion with the employee to 
discuss what they have noticed and try to identify ways to provide support.  This will take place 
by means of informal discussion.  Support measures may include: 
 

 Talking to the individual concerned and listening 

 Encouraging the person to speak to a trusted colleague 

 Referral to occupational health 

Page 30



 Referral to the employee assistance programme 

 Encouraging the employee to make an appointment with their GP 

 Encouraging the employee to make contact with support services such as Mind or the 
Samaritans 

 Consideration of any workplace adjustments  

 The development or review of a Wellness Action Plan (see section 8.2) 
 
Guidance for holding a meeting to discuss mental health is provided at Appendix 1. 
 
Where an employee is absent due to mental ill health their absence will be managed in 
accordance with the Attendance Management Policy, acknowledging that regular contact and 
the early involvement of the occupational health service is critical. 
 
Return to work meetings are also critical and will ideally take place on the first day back at 
work or before the return to work if preferred.  Guidance for approaching a conversation 
following an absence is provided at Appendix 2. 
 
8.2 Wellness Action Plans (WAP) 
 
Wellness action plans (WAP) are tools to proactively help employees to manage their mental 
health at work, and their use is encouraged.  The aim is to produce a personalised plan to 
help identify what keeps an employee well, what causes ill health and what support would be 
useful to boost wellbeing.  They are suitable for use with all employees, whether they have 
suffered with mental ill health or not.  It is expected that all employees will be given the 
opportunity to complete a WAP. They can cover: 
 

 Approaches the employee can adopt to support their mental wellbeing 

 Early warning signs of poor mental health to look out for 

 Any workplace triggers for poor mental health or stress 

 Potential impact of poor mental health on performance, if any 

 What support employees need from their manager 

 Actions and positive steps you will both take if an employee is experiencing stress or 
poor mental health 

 An agreed time to review the WAP and any support measures which are in place 

 Anything else that the employee feels would be useful in supporting their mental health 
 
A template is available at Appendix 3. 
 
The following section provides a number of options for managers and employees to consider 
to help employees stay well at work as part of a Wellness Action Plan: 

 More breaks on a flexible basis  

 Considering how to incorporate walking meetings or how to access fresh air 

 Phased return to work  

 Considering how to incorporate creativeness and innovation 

 Flexibility to change usual start and finish times  

 Allowing changes to working hours on a permanent or temporary basis  

 Review of work at regular one to one meetings 

 Reassigning duties if required 

 Providing a quiet space to work for some or all of a day, such as in an office, meeting 
room or at home 

 Allowing extra time to achieve work deadlines or performance objectives 

 Allowing certain personal phonecalls to be made at certain times of the day 

 Assigning a mentor or buddy 

Page 31



 Increasing the frequency of one to one meetings to consider work priorities, etc 

Please note that this list is not exhaustive and it will not be possible to implement all of the 
adjustments listed.  Each case will be considered on an individual basis.   

The WAP is not intended to be a medical assessment and it may not be possible to implement 
all of the agreed actions all of the time.  The WAP does not remove the responsibility of 
employees to inform their manager if they are feeling unwell. 

9.0 Management of stress in the workplace 

Stress is defined as the 'adverse reaction people have to excessive pressures or other types 
of demand placed on them'. Most employees benefit from a certain amount of pressure in their 
work; it can keep them motivated and give a sense of ambition. However, when there is too 
much pressure placed on them, they can become overloaded. Stress can affect the health of 
staff, reduce their productivity and lead to performance issues. 

It is acknowledged that factors at work may adversely affect mental health and wellbeing, 
causing stress, and it is our intention to ensure that they are recognised and addressed.  These 
factors can include: 
 

 Lack of appreciation 

 Unsatisfactory job or workload 

 Poor relationships with colleagues or managers 

 Poorly defined job roles and responsibilities  

 Lack of control over work  

 Unhealthy work-life balance  

 Organisational change and/or job insecurity  

 Lack of variety in work  

 Lack of career progression opportunities  

Stress is not an illness, but the psychological impact can lead to conditions such as anxiety 
and depression. Stress, anxiety and depression can also increase the risk of conditions like 
heart disease, back pain, gastrointestinal illnesses or skin conditions. 

Signs of stress can include: 
 

 Taking more time off work than usual with unrelated absence reasons 
 Arriving for work later  
 Being more twitchy or nervous 
 Mood swings 
 Being withdrawn 
 Loss of motivation, commitment and confidence 
 Increased emotional reactions – being more tearful, sensitive or aggressive 

In order to address work related stress, risk assessments will be carried out by managers on 
a regular basis, with reviews taking place at least once a year.  Whole team risk assessments 
will identify risks that have the potential to negatively impact on any team member and control 
measures will be identified.   

9.1 Practical steps to managing stress – how line managers will deal with individual 
cases of stress relating to work 

Page 32



Where individual employees are experiencing work related stress they are encouraged to 
speak to their line manager or Human Resources as soon as possible.  Line managers will 
take a number of steps should they be approached by an employee, or where they are 
concerned that an employee is displaying symptoms of stress: 

 Open up a discussion to identify the causes of the stress and identify any initial support 
measures 

 Referral, on the first day of absence where possible, to the Active Care service, which 
is part of the Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) if the employee is absent from 
work.  This needs to happen as soon as possible and no later than two weeks from the 
start date of the absence.   This involves the completion of a referral form with consent 
from the employee – see Appendix 4  

 Where an employee has not been absent or has returned to work, a conversation 
should be held to discuss the causes of the stress: 

o Use the Talking Toolkit to identify the causes and identify solutions - Appendix 
5 

o Produce a Wellness Action Plan – Appendix 3 
o Involve HR if it would be beneficial to all concerned 
o Refer to the Employee Assistance Programme for counselling if the employee 

has not been referred using the Active Care service – by referral form with 
consent from the employee – see Appendix 6 

The diagram below shows the steps that can be taken by line managers to support employees: 

 

 
9.2 Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) 
 
The EAP is a service that is available for all employees that is completely free, confidential 
and available 24 per day, 365 days per year.  Services it provides include formal counselling, 

Workplace stress 
experienced by 

employee 

•If absent due to 
stress at work seek 
consent to refer to 
Active Care on first 
day of absence

•Ensure contact with 
employee is 
maintained

Hold 
conversation to 
identify causes 

of stress

•Use Talking Toolkit to 
form basis of 
discussion

•Could take place at a 
return to work 
meeting

Identify control 
measures

•These could include 
changes to working 
hours, referral to EAP or 
OH, dignity at work 
policy, etc

•Include HR where 
appropriate

Page 33



either face to face or over the telephone, online counselling, online CBT (Cognitive 
Behavioural Therapy), support in relation to personal legal information, financial support, 
family issues including childcare and eldercare, housing concerns, bereavement or loss, 
relationships and marital changes. There is also a health and wellbeing portal that includes 
interactive health assessments, fitness and lifestyle coaching, personal coaching tools, self-
help programmes, work life assistance, mini health checks, home lift support, health calendar 
and much more.  
 
Employees can access the telephone and online services directly.  Counselling can be 
accessed without the need to involve or seek permission from anyone and is completely 
confidential.  There is also a management referral process for counselling for employees and 
an Active Care referral process for those employees who are unable to attend work due to 
stress, whether work related or personal. 
 
Further information about the employee assistance programme, along with contact 
information, is available at Appendix 7.   
 
10.0 Further resources 
 
There is a SLDC Employee Wellbeing Sharepoint page with many resources available.  
Other sources of information include: 

 Access to work - www.gov.uk/access-to-work - can provide advice and an 

assessment of workplace needs for individuals, with disabilities or long-term health 
conditions, who are already in work or about to start. Grants may also be available to 
help cover the cost of workplace adaptations. 

 Business in the Community - www.bitc.org.uk - is a network that provides toolkits 

on Mental Health, Suicide prevention and Suicide postvention to help employers 
support the mental health and wellbeing of employees. 

 Mind - www.mind.org.uk - is a leading mental health charity in England and Wales. 

It provides information and support on how to improve mental health. 

 Mindful Employer - www.mindfulemployer.net - is a UK-wide, NHS initiative. It is 

aimed at increasing awareness of mental health at work and providing support for 
businesses when recruiting and retaining staff. 

 NHS choices - www.nhs.uk/livewell/mentalhealth - has a website that offers 

information and practical advice for anyone experiencing mental ill health. 

 Remploy - www.remploy.co.uk - offers a free and confidential Workplace Mental 

Health Support Service for anyone absent from work or finding work difficult because 
of a mental health condition. It aims to help people remain in, or return to, their role. 

 Rethink Mental Illness - www.rethink.org - is a voluntary sector provider of mental 

health services offering support groups, advice and information on mental health and 
problems. 

11.0 Review of the policy 
 
This policy will be reviewed on a regular basis in the light of operating experience and/or 
changes in legislation. 
 

Page 34

http://www.gov.uk/access-to-work
http://www.bitc.org.uk/
http://www.mind.org.uk/
http://www.mindfulemployer.net/
http://www.nhs.uk/livewell/mentalhealth
http://www.remploy.co.uk/
http://www.rethink.org/


12.0 Appendices 
 
Appendix 1  Tips for having a conversation about mental health 

Appendix 2 Tips for what to discuss following an absence relating to mental health 

Appendix 3  Wellness Action Plan (WAP) template 

Appendix 4 Active Care Service referral form 

Appendix 5  HSE Talking Toolkit 

Appendix 6  EAP Referral Form 

Appendix 7  EAP leaflet 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Tips to having a conversation about mental health 

 
Every conversation a manager has with a team member who may be experiencing mental ill 
health will be different.  
 
Sometimes, a team member may feel able to be very open with their manager from the very 
first meeting. In other situations, it may be difficult for the team member to open up and 
might take several conversations.  
 
Below are a few tips and considerations for a manager to think about when approaching a 
conversation with a team member.  

 
 

Before the 
conversation takes 
place  

 

• Choose an appropriate place; this could be off site. It should be 
in private and usually be one-to-one  
• Consider what you have observed that concerns you and note 
examples of this  
• Keep the meeting as informal and relaxed as possible  
• Make it clear anything discussed will be kept confidential 
unless agreed otherwise  

 
At the start of the 
conversation  

 

• Approach the conversation in a sensitive and calm manner, 
and manage emotions carefully  
• Ask how they are doing  
• Explain the reason for the conversation  
• Remember to ask simple, open and non-judgmental questions  

 
During the 
conversation  

 

• Listen carefully and don’t make assumptions  
• Reassure them that you are there to try to help  
• Be patient and don’t try to force them into talking if they do not 
want to  
If they disclose they are experiencing mental ill health:  
• Check if they have been to the GP and if so, what they 
recommended and whether any medication has been prescribed 
that may affect their performance or make it unsafe for them to 
perform certain duties  
• Discuss whether there are any parts of their role they are 
struggling with or feel unable to do  
• Adjourn for a break if emotions take over or to think through 
what has been discussed if the seriously unexpected arises  
If they become angry or distressed:  
• Stay calm  
• Reassure them, that you are only trying to help them and as 
their manager you are responsible for ensuring they are coping  
• Adjourn for a break if necessary 

 
At the end of the 
conversation 

• Check if they think anything else should be discussed  
If they have disclosed they are experiencing mental ill 
health:  
• Encourage the team member to talk to their GP to get an 
expert opinion (if not done already)  

 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 37



• Highlight sources of support within the organisation such as the 
Employee Assistance Programme and outside the organisation 
such as mental health charities  
• Agree what will happen next, such as whether they will be 
referred to occupational health or if a further meeting will be 
arranged to discuss support options  
If they have stated that there is no problem:  
• Respect their position  
• Make clear you are available at any time if they ever want to 
talk  
If they are/have been absent from work:  
• Discuss what they would like their colleagues to know about 
the reason for their absence  
• Agree what information can be shared and what must stay 
confidential  

 
After the 
conversation  

 

If they have disclosed they are experiencing mental ill 
health:  
• Think about potential support or adaptations that may help  
• Arrange a further meeting to discuss support options  
• Document what was discussed and agreed  
 
If they have stated that there is no problem:  
• Monitor the situation, and if you still have concerns consider 
seeking advice from sources such as HR, the Employee 
Assistance Programme and Occupational Health  
• Be available and approachable in case they want to talk to you 
at a later point about their health  

 Document your discussion and what was agreed 

 

 
Adapted from ACAS guidance on approaching a sensitive conversation regarding 
mental ill health 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 38



 

Tips for what to consider to ensure a successful return to work following following an 

absence relating to mental ill health 

 

The below tips should be read in conjunction with the Attendance Management Policy: 

 

Before the 
return to work 
meeting 

Have a plan for the person’s first day back at work to ensure they feel 
included and welcomed – this can include making a plan for lunch, 
having a buddy available or having a brief work update ready 

First day Meet the individual as soon as possible, ideally on their first day back at 
work following absence 

At the return 
to work 
meeting 

Talk about any tasks, responsibilities or relationships that they may feel 
apprehensive about and consider any temporary changes that you can 
make 

 Explore potential return to work adaptations with an open mind 

 Talk about anything that has happened at work that may impact on the 
person’s role, responsibilities and work practices 

 Consider whether a phased return to work plan will help 

Following the 
meeting 

Involve a ‘buddy’ to help reintegration into the workplace routines: 
someone who can involve them in tea rounds and lunch plans, as well 
as keeping them up to speed with changes to staffing, procedures, 
processes, etc 

Ongoing Promote a positive team spirit and encourage the team to make 
everyone feel welcome and valued 

 Ensure everyone understands that it is OK to ask how a person is and 
this will generally be appreciated 

 Keep in regular contact with the person who has been absent from work 
and ask how they are doing 

 Ensure there are regular ongoing opportunities to monitor and review 
what is going well and what is not going as well.  This will help to make 
sure the support and adjustments in place are working and give you the 
opportunity to tweak them 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Wellness Action Plan (WAP) 

A WAP reminds us what need to do to stay well at work and details what our line managers 

can do to better support us. 

It also helps us develop an awareness of our working style, stress triggers and responses, 

and enables us to communicate with our manager. 

The information in this form will be held confidentially and regularly reviewed by you and 

your manager together.  You only need to provide information that you are comfortable 

sharing and that relates to your role and workplace.   

Certain circumstances may require confidentiality to be broken – an example of this will be 

where you present information that raises concerns that you or others may be at risk of 

harm.  You will always be told if discussion points need to be raised elsewhere. 

1. What helps you stay mentally healthy at work? 
(For example taking an adequate lunch break away from your desk, getting some exercise 
before or after work or in your lunchbreak, light and space in the office, opportunities to 
get to know colleagues) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2. What can your manager do to proactively support you to stay mentally healthy at 
work? 
(For example regular feedback and catch ups, flexible working patterns, explain wider 
organisational developments) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Are there any situations at work that can trigger poor mental health for you? 
(For example conflict at work, organisational change, tight deadlines, something not going 
to plan) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4. How might experiencing poor mental health impact on your work? 
(For example you find it difficult to make decisions, struggle to prioritise work tasks, 
difficulty with concentration, drowsiness, confusion, headaches) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 3 

Page 41



5. Are there any early warning signs that we might notice when you are starting to 
experience poor mental health? 
(For example changes in normal working patterns, withdrawing from colleagues) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

6. What support could be put in place to minimise triggers or help you to manage 
the impact? 
(For example extra catch-up time with your manager, guidance on prioritising workload, 
flexible working patterns, consider reasonable adjustments) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Are there elements of your individual working style or temperament that it is 
worth your manager being aware of? 
(For example a preference for more face to face or more email contact, a need for quiet 
reflection time prior to meetings or creative tasks, negotiation on deadlines before they are 
set, having access to a mentor for questions you might not want to bother your manager 
about, having a written plan of work in place which can be reviewed and amended 
regularly, clear deadlines if you have a tendency to over-work a task, tendency to have 
particularly high or low energy in the morning or afternoon) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

8. If we notice early warning signs that you are experiencing poor mental health – 
what should we do? 
(For example talk to you discreetly about it, contact someone that you have asked to be 
contacted) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

9. What steps can you take if you start to experience poor mental health at work?  Is 
there anything we need to do to facilitate them? 
(For example you might like to take a break from your desk and go for a short walk, or ask 
your line manager for support) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



10. Is there anything else you would like to share? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Employee 

signature:……………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Date:…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Line manager 

signature:……………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Date:…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Date to be 

reviewed:………………………………………………………………………………………. 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



We don't know when you might need us - That's why we're here 24 hours a day 
0800 030 5182 -  www.healthassuredeap.com

Referral Process
Appendix 4

Page 45



We don't know when you might need us - That's why we're here 24 hours a day 
0800 030 5182 -  www.healthassuredeap.com

Referral Form

Active Care Referral Form 

Section 1 - Employee Details 

Name of Employee: 

Employee Date of Birth: 

Employee Address: 

Employee Contact Telephone Number: 

Employee Email Address: 

Section 2 - Employer Details 

Name of referring Manager: 

Company Name: 

Company Address: 

Manager’s Contact Telephone Number: 

Manager’s Email Address: 

Is this to do with work, personal or both?        

Brief description of absence: 

Copy of ‘Fit Note’ attached? 

Has explicit consent been obtained from the employee? 

(please delete as appropriate) 

(please delete as appropriate) 

Please Note: An Active Care referral can only be made if the employee has consented to receiving our call. 

It is important the referral is discussed with the individual concerned by the referring 
Manager. Please send the completed form by email or fax to: 

E: occhealth@healthassured.co.uk
F: 0870 2387 426 

Start date of absence: 

Please note: referral will not be eligible if absence is more than two weeks 

Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page | 1 – Health Assured – Standard UK EAP Helpline Referral – V2 May 2018 – Company Confidential © 

EAP REFERRAL – GUIDANCE NOTES 
EXTERNAL USE 

Please see below the guidance notes for making an EAP referral. 

WHAT DO YOU NEED TO DO? 

STEP 1 

Clarify the situation with the employee in confidence. Please inform them of the availability of the 
Health Assured Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) which includes: 

• 24/7 counselling helpline and where applicable, structured short-term solution focused
therapy.

• Advice and information for practical legal, financial and medical matters.

Questions to consider that may be helpful: 

1. Do you need to discuss the situation with Health Assured first for guidance in approaching the
matter?

2. Is the employee happy to receive a voicemail/text or could that result in someone,
unintended, finding out about the support?

3. How is the situation impacting the employee?
4. When would be the best time for Health Assured to make contact, ensuring they are in a

private and confidential space?

STEP 2 

Complete the referral form with the employee, ensuring that explicit consent has been obtained. 

Employee Consent 
Health Assured is committed to the protection of all client data, and the transparent and informed 
use of the EAP Services. The referral process must be completed with the employee’s involvement 
with clear consent to release information to Health Assured for the purpose of accessing support.  

The referral process involves sharing personal contact details and case history which may include 
highly sensitive data (Special Category Data) including information about things such as health or 
sexual orientation. Employees are asked to confirm their consent to such by signing this form under 
the Employee Declaration section.  

If an employee does not consent to the EAP Referral, please remind the employee they can contact 
the helpline on a self-referral basis.   

Appendix 6

Page 69



 

Page | 2 – Health Assured – Standard UK EAP Helpline Referral – V2 May 2018 – Company Confidential © 
 

STEP 3  
 
Send the completed referral form to counsellingadvice@healthassured.co.uk   
 
There is no need to follow a referral form with a telephone call to Health Assured, however if you 
would like to discuss a referral with a counsellor/advisor please call us on 0800 030 5182. We also ask 
that the referral is sent from a confidential email address.  
 
WHAT HAPPENS NEXT? 
 
Health Assured will contact the employee within 24 hours of receiving the EAP helpline referral form.  
 
The counsellor will identify and offer the most appropriate support / intervention for your employee.  
  
Health Assured will inform you whether contact has been made or if there have been any problems 
making contact with employee.  
 

EAP Helpline Referral Form  
 

Please complete all the white boxes and return to Health Assured 
 

Company name / scheme number 
 
 

Authorised by  
(Including telephone number) 

 

Company address 

 

Employee name  
 

Employee address 

 

Employee date of birth 
 

Employee contact telephone 
number 

 

Is it ok to leave a message? 
 
 
 

History 
(including the reason for the 
referral request and any presenting 
issues) 

 

Page 70



 

Page | 3 – Health Assured – Standard UK EAP Helpline Referral – V2 May 2018 – Company Confidential © 
 

Best days and time to contact the 
employee? (i.e. am/pm/eve/any) 

 

Is a Therapy Report required by 
referring manager? (optional) 

 

Has the employee given explicit 
consent and signed the employee 
declaration below? 

 

 
Employee declaration  
(To be completed by the employee being referred to Health Assured) 
 
I confirm that I understand and consent to the personal details contained within this form being 
referred to Health Assured for the purpose of accessing EAP services. I have read and understood the 
FAQs and I acknowledge and consent for the referring manager to be informed if: 
 

1. Support has been put in place by Health Assured 
2. Support has been declined or deemed unsuitable 
3. Health Assured have been unable to make contact with me on the contact details provided 

 
If your employer has requested a Therapy Report (optional), do you consent to a progress and 
outcome report being provided? *please see below FAQs for details of what this includes.   
 
 Yes – I have read the FAQs and consent to my employer being provided with a progress and 

outcome Therapy Report; or, 
  

 No – I do not consent to a progress and outcome Therapy Report being sent to my employer.  

 
Should you wish to, you can withdraw your consent at any time by calling Health Assured on 0800 030 
5182 or by emailing counsellingadvice@healthassured.co.uk 
 
Please Note: 
A proactive EAP Helpline Referral call can only be made if the employee has consented to receiving 
our call. It is important that this is discussed with the individual concerned by the referring line 
manager. 
 
To initiate an EAP Helpline Referral, complete the form and send to Health Assured 

Please return by Email to: counsellingadvice@healthassured.co.uk  
Tel:  0800 030 5182 

 

Employee Name 
 

Signature 
 

Date 
 

Page 71



 

Page | 4 – Health Assured – Standard UK EAP Helpline Referral – V2 May 2018 – Company Confidential © 
 

EMPLOYEE FAQS 
 
What data will be shared with Health Assured? 
Only data that you want to share with your manager and are happy to be passed to Health Assured. If 
you have any concerns these can be discussed with your line manager, or alternatively, only disclosed 
directly to Health Assured once contact is established.  
 
What happens if I consent? 
The referral will be sent directly to Health Assured and we will arrange for the relevant 
counsellor/advisor to make contact within the agreed timeframe. During this call we will explain 
support options, gather further details about the situation and implement any applicable support. 
 
How will you use my data? 
Health Assured will use any data collected for the provision of EAP services, with all content being held 
confidentially within our secure case processing systems. Further details of how we use data are 
detailed within our Privacy Notice which is available at www.healthassured.co.uk. For details 
regarding how your employer uses your data, please speak to them or look for their own Privacy 
Notices.  
 
What will be shared with my employer? 
Client confidentiality is at the forefront of everything we do at Health Assured, in relation to a EAP 
Referral and the support which is put in place, Health Assured will only report back to your employer 
to report whether: 
 

• Support has been put in place by Health Assured 
• Support has been declined or deemed unsuitable at this point in time; or, 
• Health Assured have been unable to make contact with you on the contact details provided 

 
Are there any circumstances in which confidentiality would not be maintained? 
Although Health Assured protect confidentiality wherever possible, there are certain circumstances in 
which confidentiality must be broken.  
 

• Risk of harm to self or others – if there is a legitimate concern for harm to self or others, then 
Health Assured will liaise with a client’s GP to arrange additional support, or if required the 
applicable Emergency Service provider.  

• Safeguarding concerns – where children or vulnerable adults are implicated, the local 
authority designated officer/social services department may be informed. 

 
In extraordinary circumstances, where the risk relates directly to your employer, i.e. on site risk or 
where public interest outweighs confidentiality, we may inform your employer of details limited to 
that specific risk.  
 
Do I have to consent to an EAP helpline referral? 
Health Assured will not contact you unless you have consented. Alternatives include contacting us 
directly via the helpline or website in which case your employer will be removed from the process. If 
you consent but then change your mind, please get in touch with Health Assured or your employer 
and we will stop the referral process meaning that the requested support will not be put in place. 
Health Assured can be contacted directly through your helpline number or alternatively email 
counsellingadvice@healthassured.co.uk. 

Page 72



 

Page | 5 – Health Assured – Standard UK EAP Helpline Referral – V2 May 2018 – Company Confidential © 
 

 
THERAPY REPORTS 
 
We are able to provide Therapy Reports which detail the progress and outcome of your support to the 
referring manager, providing the employee has provided consent and the referrer has requested the 
reports in their initial referral form.  
 
If you consent to a Therapy Report, your manager will receive an initial and final report that include 
the following information:  
 

Initial report (after 1s t session) Final report (after final session) 

What are the main presenting issues detected? 
 
Are the issues work related?  
 
Are there factors outside of work contributing  
to the issues? 
 
What is the goal of therapy? 
 
Can this be achieved in the sessions available?    
 
If not, what onward referral pathways have 
been or will be made? 

Is the employee working or have they been able 
to return to work? 
 
If the absence is mental health related, has the 
individual been recommended to complete the  
HSE Return to Work Questionnaire with their 
employer? 
 
Number and dates of all sessions 
 
Number of sessions agreed 
 
Number of sessions attended & DNA  
 
Was the goal of therapy achieved?  
 
Have further onward referrals been made or 
suggested?  
 
Are there any recommendations to the 
employee for their continual care?  
 
Any relevant or useful information in your 
capacity as a therapist? 
 

 
Progress and outcome reports are stored on our case management system and attached to an 
individual’s case notes. 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



A 24 hour helpline from Health Assured to support 

you through any of life's issues or problems 

We don't know when you might need us. 

That's why we're here 24 hours a day. 

"Legal "Counselling 

"Financial "Medical 

"Consumer 

"Work 

� Family 

� Stress 

Call us in strictest Confidence on 

0800 030 5182 
(Outside the UK. -+-44 161 836 9498) 

"Emotional support 

� Personal coaching 

"Health assessment 

On1 :ie L•festyle Services 

www hP.althassuredeap co uk 

Username: South Password: Lakeland 

� Medical factsheets 

� Fitness advice 

� Stress assessment 

Health Assured 
·-:�:··.

•. 

. : ...

�.\.t. Health Assured
. ·-·
·. ·- ·-._ 
. .. .. .. .... .
. . : . ..

..

.. . . .. - ... . 

A confidential support service for employees 

About Your Employee Assistance Programme 
Sometimes it can be difficult to balance the pressures of work with the need 
of home life. Your employer recognises help is sometimes needed to deal will 
the challenges you may face in life, both practical and emotional. Healtl 
Assured provides confidential support services which are available to you am 
your immediate family.' 

Please make that call rather than allowing your concerns to gro 

you can speak with the same counsellor more than once 

What can I use this service for? 

M Family issues � Financial information .!.-- Legal information 

<;)r Medical information ft Relationships 

i,Alcohol or drug issues (¥> Childcare advice 

8Gambling issues 

• Consumer issues

e Domestic abuse 

• Tax information

ft Housing concerns 

lfll Stress and anxiety 

Ii, Retirement 

@ Bereavement 

Telephone Counselling 

Your call will always be answered by a qualified, experienced counsellor who 
will offer help and support in a professional. friendly and non-judgmental 
manner. 

Online Health Portal@ www.healthassuredeap.com 

i Nutritional advice 41'" Health checks • Fitness advice 

I§ Personal coaching � Medical factsheets CJ BMI assessment 

FREE 24 HOUR 0800 030 518 
www .healthassuredeap.com 

Pop out card and put it In your wallet 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAMME 

I 
I 

FREE 24 HOUR I 
Family Issues 

lifestyle Addictions 

Relation5hips 

Legal 

personal support service I 
0800 030 5182 I 

www.healthassuredeap.com 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

7 Appendix 7

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 76



 South Lakeland District Council 

Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma 
 

Project, policy or programme: Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy 

Health Impacts Potential Impacts 

Positive No 
impact 

Negative Not 
sure 

Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box   

Environmental Conditions 
Air quality 

 

 x     

Water quality and 
pollution 

 

 x     

Built environment 

 

 x     

Natural environment 
and biodiversity 

 

 x     

Energy 
consumption/efficiency 

 

 x     

Noise 

 

 x     

Transport 

 

 x     

Recycling 

 

 x     

Food production 

 

 x     

Social and Economic Factors 
Employment 

 

 x     

Income 

 

 x     

Poverty 

 

 x     

Education, skills and 
training 

 

 x     

Housing 

 

 x     

Crime 

 

 x     

Work environment 

 

 x     

Appendix 2 

Page 77



Project, policy or programme: Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy 

Health Impacts Potential Impacts 

Positive No 
impact 

Negative Not 
sure 

Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box   

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve their own health and wellbeing 
Nutrition and diet 

 

x    All of the factors listed 
in this section have 
an impact on mental 
wellbeing.  This policy 
aims to increase 
awareness and 
provide positive 
support 

 

Physical activity 

 

x      

Alcohol 

 

x      

Drugs 

 

x      

Risk taking behaviour 

 

x      

Smoking 

 

x      

Loneliness and 
isolation 

 

x      

Access to services, spaces or social opportunities that impact health 
Communication 
methods 

 

 x     

Active travel 

 

 x     

Access to leisure 

 

 x     

Access to culture 

 

 x     

Access to green 
spaces 

 

 x     

 

Page 78



Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EIA 
Title:  

 
1.0 The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected 

characteristics: 
 

Age, disability, ethnicity, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.  
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the 
elimination of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0). 
 

1.1  SLDC includes “rurality” and “socio-economic disadvantage” as 
additional categories in its equality impact assessments. Although socio-
economic status and rurality are not recognised protected characteristics 
under the Equality Act, people on low incomes or in rural isolation are highly 
likely to be affected by services that are intended to support vulnerable 
people. 

 
2.0 The General Equality Duty.  

SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:  
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Act.  
b.  Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a  

protected characteristic and those who do not.  
c.  Foster good relations between people who share  

a protected characteristic and those who  
do not.  
 

Appendix 3 

Page 79



Step 1 

Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA. 

The subject is the Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy.  The impact of this will be to 
raise awareness of mental health, remove the stigma associated with mental 
health and to improve the wellbeing of staff by building resilience. 
 
The expected outcomes are that the policy will have a positive impact on the 
protected characteristics covered by the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken 
(include surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.). 

Stakeholders: all employees of SLDC 
 
Engagement has taken place in person with the Health Advocates and Change 
Champions staff groups, as well as recognised Trade Unions. 

 
 
 

Page 80



Step 2 

Equality Action Plan 
 

In providing this service, what are the impacts 
for the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including 

rural deprivation, ‘rurality’) 
 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Positive 
impacts 

Negative 
impacts 

Mitigating actions (to 
avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead 
Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

All The policy provides 
an individualised 
approach for all 
employees to build 
resilience in relation 
to mental wellbeing 

None identified n/a   

Disabled The policy provides 
tools for employees 
and those with line 
management 
responsibilities to 
make it easier to 
identify and 
implement any 
reasonable 
adjustments as 
defined in the 

None identified n/a   

P
age 81



In providing this service, what are the impacts 
for the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including 

rural deprivation, ‘rurality’) 
 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Positive 
impacts 

Negative 
impacts 

Mitigating actions (to 
avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead 
Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

Equality Act 2010 

      

      

P
age 82



Step 3 
 

Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues used 
are accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments) 

The policy provides a clear framework for identifying those employees who require 
reasonable adjustments to support their attendance at work.  This is in line with the 
Equality Act 2010. 
 
Examples include line manager discussions, raising awareness of mental health to 
reduce discrimination, counselling, occupational health, stress risk assessments and 
wellness action plans. 

 
The council has a list of equality contacts who can be contacted for consultation or to ask advice. 
The list is on the intranet under Equality and Diversity. If you need any support when completing 
this Equality Impact Analysis, please contact the Partnerships and Funding Officer.  

 

Date: 05.08.19 

EIA Author(s): Dawn Bradley 

Assistant Director:  

Document version number: 1 

Date for Review: 01.10.20 

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer Y 

 
 

Glossary 
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 
year-olds).  
 
Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples 
on a range of legal matters.  
 
Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse 
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning 
disability. 
 
Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is 
undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing 
physiological or other attributes of sex. 
 
Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection 
against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.  
 
Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, 
Asian, Black and White minority ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.  
 
Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and 
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, 
Buddhism, and non religious beliefs such as Humanism. 
 
Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.  
 
Socio-economic disadvantage: This includes people on low incomes, as well as issues around rural and urban deprivation, such 
as access to services and transport. Rurality should be specifically considered as South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this 
means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and larger market towns. 

 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Item No.9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

Item No.10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Item No.11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Appeals Sub-Committee
	7 Sickness Absence Report 2018/19
	8 Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy
	Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy - Appendix 1
	Tips to having a conversation about mental health - Appendix 1 - Appendix 1
	Tips for what to discuss following an absence relating to mental illness - Appendix 1 - Appendix 2
	Wellness Action Plan - Appendix 1 - Appendix 3
	Active Care Referral  - Appendix 1 - Appendix 4
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Active Care V1.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	HSE Toolkit  - Appendix 1 - Appendix 5
	EAP Helpline Referral - Appendix 1 - Appendix 6
	external Use
	What do you need to do?
	Step 1
	Step 2
	Step 3
	What happens next?

	Employee FAQs
	Therapy Reports
	Final report (after final session)
	Initial report (after 1st session)

	EAP Leaflet - Appendix 1 - Appendix 7
	Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact Assessment - Appendix 2
	EIA - Appendix 3

	9 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee
	10 Joint Consultative Panel
	11 Request under the Exceptional Special Leave, Secondment and Learning and Development Policies
	Report - Appendix 1
	Report - Appendix 2
	Report - Appendix 3


	HR manager emails the forms to occhealthhealthassuredco uk: 
	Written report is collated by the OHA: 
	Report reviewed by Clinical Team: 
	Text1: 
	Yes/No: Yes/No
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Yes/No2: Yes/No
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Company name  scheme number: 
	Authorised by Including telephone number: 
	Company address: 
	Employee name: 
	Employee address: 
	Employee date of birth: 
	Employee contact telephone number: 
	Is it ok to leave a message: 
	History including the reason for the referral request and any presenting issues: 
	Best days and time to contact the employee ie ampmeveany: 
	Is a Therapy Report required by referring manager optional: 
	Has the employee given explicit consent and signed the employee declaration below: 
	Yes  I have read the FAQs and consent to my employer being provided with a progress and: Off
	No  I do not consent to a progress and outcome Therapy Report being sent to my employer: Off
	Employee Name: 
	Signature: 
	Date: 


